

Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club, Inc.

Yacht Club Road, NW, Lake Sinclair, Milledgeville, Georgia 31061

Constitution

Bylaws

Rules and Regulations

as of December 3, 2022

Table of Contents

Constitution of the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club, Inc.

- Article I - Name
- Article II - Purpose
- Article III - Burgee
- Article IV - Membership
- Article V - Officers and Trustees
- Article VI - Elections
- Article VII - Duties
- Article VIII - Duties
- Article IX - Voting
- Article X - Committees
- Article XI - Debt
- Article XII - Discipline
- Article XIII - Amendments
- Article XIV - Bylaws

Bylaws of the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club, Inc.

- Article I - Fees and Dues
- Article II - Meetings
- Article III - Order of Business
- Article IV - Admission of Members
- Article V - Standing Rules
- Article VI - Amendments

Rules and Regulations of the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club, Inc.

- Grounds
- Docks
- Berthing Boats
- Safety

CONSTITUTION OF THE OCONEE SAILING AND YACHT CLUB, INC.

Revised November 2003

ARTICLE I. Name

Section 1. The name of this corporation shall be the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club, Inc.

ARTICLE II. Purpose

Section I. The principle purposes of the Club shall be: To promote sailing; to help promote water safety and a code of ethics for the waterways; to form a social and activity nucleus for people in this area interested in boating; to develop an active relationship with other sailing organizations; to promote racing and other sailing activities; and to foster a spirit of helpfulness and good fellowship. The Club is not and shall not be maintained nor shall any of its objects be pursued or undertaken for pecuniary profits.

ARTICLE III. Club Burgee

Section 1. The Burgee of the Club shall be a pointed pennant 10 inches on the hoist and 15 inches in length overall. The field shall be dark blue with an Indian arrowhead in white so placed as to cover the greater part of the pennant and pointed directly away from the hoist, the exact pattern to be on file with the Secretary.

ARTICLE IV. Membership

Section 1. Any person shall be eligible for membership who is interested in sailing or boating, whether he or she is a boat owner or not.

Section 2. Application shall be made through the Secretary but shall not be acted upon until said applicant is sponsored by two club members in good standing. Membership shall take effect 30 days after having been posted on club bulletin board or notices mailed to members, if no more than one member has objected in writing to the Secretary and all fees paid.

Section 3. Active Members. Active members shall consist of those persons over 18 years of age who are boat owners duly elected to membership as provided herein. Active members have the privilege of voting and holding office. No more than 10 per cent (10%) of the active membership may be solely powerboat owners.

Section 4. Associate Members. Associate members shall consist of those persons over 18 years of age who are not boat owners and who have no intention of acquiring a boat within the immediate future but are duly elected to membership as provided herein. They may hold no office and have no vote, excepting in the case of Associate members who are also Charter Members. Associate Charter Members have the privilege of voting.

Section 5. Family of Active and Associate Members

(a) Active Members. Membership resides as a family unit. Voting shall be on the basis of one vote per membership, cast by either of the adult members present without the requirement of a proxy from the other. Dependents other than the spouse have no vote.

(b) Active and Associate Members. Membership resides as a family unit. Persons, whose family privileges are terminated by marriage shall, upon applying for membership, be given precedence over all other applicants, provided all other qualifications are equal.

Section 6. Junior Members. Junior members shall consist of those persons under 18 years of age interested in boating, who are not dependents of Active or Associate members. Junior members must be elected as provided herein. They cannot vote or hold office.

Section 7. Honorary Membership. Honorary membership shall be limited to persons who have rendered extraordinary service to sailing or boating or to this club. An Honorary member does not have the privilege of voting or holding office. Honorary members shall be introduced in the usual manner and must meet the unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees.

Section 8. Charter Members. Charter members shall be those members in all the previous categories, who were duly elected prior to March 1, 1957, and shall have the right and privilege described under the various classes of membership and shall be exempt from payment of an initiation fee.

Section 9. Lifetime Members. Lifetime members shall be those members who have rendered extraordinary service to sailing, boating, or to this club, and will exercise all the privileges of regular membership, including but not limited to the right to vote and hold office. Lifetime members will be exempt from the payment of membership dues, and will be nominated by the Board of Trustees. Approval will be by a majority vote of the General Membership at any scheduled or called meeting. (8/26/89)

Section 10. Initiation fee shall be fixed by the provision of the Bylaws and must be paid before a person can be a member.

Section 11. Dues shall be fixed by the provisions of the Bylaws and must be paid before a person can be a member.

Section 12. Fees may be charged for the berthing of boats as provided for in the Bylaws.

Section 13. Termination of Membership. Membership in this Club shall be terminated; first, by voluntary resignation, provided such resignation be tendered in writing, addressed to the Secretary, to be acted upon by the Board of Trustees; and no such resignation shall be accepted unless the resigning member shall be at the time in good standing, and shall have liquidated all indebtedness to the Club, including dues for the current month in which his resignation is tendered; second, by action of the Board of Trustees for non-payment of any indebtedness beyond the period provided by the Bylaws or rules. Third, expulsion for cause. Fourth, by death of a member.

Section 14. Rights of Members. No member per se shall have or claim any right or title in any of the property or assets of the Club, and no person who has not been regularly elected a member of the Club and is not otherwise in good standing as a member, shall have any right in any wise or manner to avail himself of the privilege of the Club.

ARTICLE V. Officers and Board of Trustees

Section 1. The officers of this Club shall consist of the Commodore, the Vice-Commodore, the Secretary, and the Treasurer, who shall be elected by the majority vote of the Club membership at a regular annual meeting and shall serve for a period of twelve months.

Fleet captains shall be elected by the boat owners of the respective fleets at a regular annual meeting and will serve for a period of twelve months.

Section 2. The Board of Trustees shall consist of the two Flag officers, the Secretary, the Treasurer, the immediate past Commodore and others as follows: for every 50 members of the Club, or fraction thereof; two trustees shall be elected. The Board of Trustees shall serve for a period of twelve months.

Section 3. These officers shall rank in the order designated and must be active members of the Club.

ARTICLE VI. Election of Officers and Board of Trustees

Section 1. Election of officers shall be by ballot. Such election shall take place at the Fall Annual Meeting of each year. The Commodore, Vice-Commodore, Secretary, and Treasurer shall be elected by separate ballot. The previous Commodore shall assume the office of Past Commodore. The remainder of the Trustees shall be elected by plurality-at-large voting on a single ballot with each voting member selecting as many candidates as there are positions, one vote per candidate, and those candidates receiving the most votes being elected. Officers shall hold office for one year beginning at the end of the Meeting following election and until his successor is elected and qualified.

Section 2. A vacancy, even though temporarily filled by appointment by the Commodore, shall be filled by a general election at a meeting to be called not more than three months after the occurrence of the vacancy. Notice of such meeting, stating the purpose of the meeting, shall be sent to each Active and Charter Associate member at least 10 days prior to the meeting.

ARTICLE VII. Duties of the Officers and Board of Trustees

Section 1. It shall be the duty of the Commodore to command the squadron, to preside at all club meetings, to fill a vacancy in any office of the Club until an election can be held, to appoint all committees (except as are otherwise provided for) and to enforce the laws and regulations. He shall be ex-officio member of all committees.

Section 2. It shall be the duty of the Vice-Commodore to assist the Commodore in the discharge of his duties and, in his absence, to act as Commodore.

Section 3. In the absence of the Flag officers, a senior member as designated by the Commodore shall act as Commodore.

Section 4. Club records shall be maintained by the Secretary and Treasurer working together as follows:

- a. It shall be the duty of the Treasurer:
 1. to keep a correct roll of the members and yachts of the Club and periodically furnish the Secretary the data needed to prepare or amend the current roster;
 2. to have custody of the funds of the Club;

3. to collect all the dues;
4. to pay all the bills as authorized by the Board of Trustees; and
5. to provide the Secretary with financial reports and analyses as requested by the Board of Trustees for inclusion in the records of proceedings.

b. It shall be the duty of the Secretary:

1. to keep full records of the proceedings of each meeting;
2. to record votes for matters considered by email (see section 5.b below);
3. to have the custody of all reports and documents connected with the business of the Club;
4. to give all notices of meetings and in the case of special meetings, designate the business intended;
5. to notify members of their election to office and their appointment to serve on Committees;
6. to notify each member-elect and his sponsors of his election and furnish him with a club roster for the current year;
7. to conduct the correspondence of the Club; and
8. to prepare and disseminate a roster of membership, one or more times each year.

Section 5.

a) The Board of Trustees shall have control and management of all Club property and funds. It shall also perform such duties as are hereinafter specified. A quorum of the Board for the transaction of business at a meeting shall consist of a majority of members.

b) For matters requiring timely attention, the commodore may ask the members of the Board of Trustees to vote on a single issue using electronic communications, i.e., email. For this vote to be binding, a majority of the trustees must respond "for" or "against" the matter being considered. Email votes must be recorded by the Secretary and reported at the next meeting of the board and included in the minutes. Issues decided by email will not require a motion and a second.

Section 6. Any member of the Board of Trustees who shall absent himself from two consecutive meetings of the Board, unless he has previously obtained permission to do so from the Board of Trustees or shall present at the next meeting an excuse for his absence satisfactory to the Board shall be deemed to have resigned his office.

ARTICLE VIII. Meetings

Section 1. There shall be an annual fall meeting to elect officers and to hear reports of the activities of the Club. Other meetings shall be held at the discretion of the Commodore.

Section 2. Special meetings shall be held as provided for in the Bylaws.

Section 3. A quorum shall consist of 1/4 of the membership for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Club.

ARTICLE IX. Voting

Section 1. All active and Charter Associate members may vote at all elections and upon all questions put before the membership.

Section 2. Only two co-owners of a single boat are entitled to vote

ARTICLE X. Committees

Section 1. All committee chairmen shall be nominated by the Commodore and elected by the Board of Trustees. Committee members shall be selected by the Chairmen subject to approval by the Commodore.

Section 2. The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Past Commodore, the Vice Commodore, one additional member from the Board of Trustees and two members of the club at-large who are not on the Board of Trustees, nominated by the Commodore and approved by the Board.

Section 3. The Membership Committee shall consist of the Past Commodore, the Vice Commodore, one additional member from the Board of Trustees and two members of the club at-large who are not on the Board of Trustees, nominated by the Commodore and approved by the Board

ARTICLE XI. Debt

Section 1. No indebtedness shall be incurred on behalf of the Club unless an appropriation shall have been made thereafter nor should such indebtedness be made in excess of such appropriation except as approved by the Board of Trustees. Such appropriations shall be in the form of budgets officially approved by the Trustees.

ARTICLE XII. Discipline

Section 1. Any member having a complaint to make against any-other member or members for an infraction of the laws of the Club, or for conduct prejudicial to the welfare of the Club, shall report the same in writing to the Board of Trustees.

Section 2. After receiving such complaints, which must set forth the facts of the case, together with the names of witnesses, a meeting of the Board of Trustees may be held to investigate the same and of such meeting the party or parties charged with the offense shall receive at least five days notice and may be heard in their own defense.

Section 3. For disorderly conduct at Club functions and for violations of Club rules or regulations a member shall be subject to fine, suspension or expulsion by the Board of Trustees, as the gravity of the offense may dictate.

Section 4. No member may be expelled from this club unless such expulsion be approved by the Board of Trustees, provided that when such expulsion is approved the aggrieved member shall have the right to appeal, within sixty (60) days, for reinstatement by majority vote in person or by proxy of the Club membership. Upon receiving a written appeal signed by twenty members in good standing, the Commodore shall call a special meeting of the Club to vote on the reinstatement. Such a meeting shall be held within sixty days from the date that the appeal is filed.

Article XIII. Amendments

Section 1. This Constitution may be amended at any meeting of this Club by a two-thirds vote of the members present in person or by proxy, provided notice, of such amendment be sent to members of the Club at least thirty days prior to the date of such meeting. Such amendment shall not be valid, however, unless passed by two-thirds vote of the members present or by proxy at a subsequent meeting held within a period of not more than nine months nor less than seven days after the first passage.

ARTICLE XIV. Bylaws

Section 1. The club may adopt Bylaws for executing the provisions of this Constitution and regulate its proceedings.

**BYLAWS
OF
THE OCONEE SAILING AND YACHT CLUB, INC.**

Revised December 3, 2022

ARTICLE I. Initiation Fees, Annual Dues, Assessments for Wet Dock Slips and Annual Wet Dock Slip Rent

Section 1. A newly elected member shall be given notice of such election and shall pay dues as required within thirty days of election.

- a) The initiation fee for Active Members and Associate Members (clarification 6-8-96) shall be \$300.
- b) The annual dues shall be \$325 for 2023, \$350 for 2024, \$375 for 2025 and \$400 for 2026 and afterward.
- c) Junior memberships shall have no initiation fee and shall have an annual membership fee of \$50. (1/1/88).

Section 2. A new member shall pay a pro rata portion of his dues for the remainder of the year, figures from the first of the month nearest his notification of election.

Section 3. Any member failing to pay his dues or assessments within thirty (30) days of the due date shall forfeit his right to use of Club facilities. After sixty (60) days his name shall be posted on the Club bulletin board and he shall forfeit his right to vote.

Furthermore, if the debt is not paid before the expiration of ninety (90) days beyond the due date the delinquent member shall cease to be a member of the Club.

Section 4. The annual assessment for berthing boats in the wet dock slips provided by the Club will be set annually by the Trustees at such amount as the Trustees deem necessary to recover the costs of maintaining the wet dock slips during the preceding year and straight line depreciation over a life of ten (10) years of the costs of construction.

Section 5. All requests for wet dock slip storage shall be made in writing to the Club Secretary. The Secretary shall assign wet slips based upon availability, time on waiting list and seniority of the Club members first come first served. The Secretary shall maintain a waiting list of members who have requested new dock slip assignments or slip upgrades.

Section 5.1. A one-time fee of \$200.00 shall be charged those applicants selected for wet dock slip storage. Annual slip rent shall be \$100.00. The fees and assessments for wet dock slips shall be collected as follows:

- (a) All written requests for wet dock slips submitted to the Secretary must be accompanied by a \$100.00 deposit that is one half of the total wet dock slip fee.
- (b) The balance of the wet dock slip fee (\$100.00) will be collected from the member at the time the slip is assigned.
- (c) The pro-rated portion of the annual slip rent (\$100) for the current year shall be due and payable at the time of assignment of the wet dock slip.

Section 5.2. Current holders of wet dock slips who want to upgrade or better their slip assignments must make their requests annually in writing to the Secretary. Upgrade requests will be maintained on a waiting list. Upgrade requests on file the prior year must be renewed in writing with the Secretary annually, and must be received between January 1 and January 15 each year in order to maintain that persons' place on the waiting list.

Section 5.3. When a slip becomes vacant, upgrade assignments shall be awarded to current dock slip holders before vacant slips are assigned to members requesting such for the first time.

Section 5.4. Any boat occupying a wet slip that, after January 1, 1987, is not sailed for a period of twelve months must be removed from it wet slip by its owner and such owner shall forfeit his right to such wet slip provided, however, that the Trustees shall be authorized to waive such removal and forfeiture in those cases where the member owning such boat during such twelve (12) month period was due to circumstances over which he had no control and that such member will be sailing such boat regularly during the following year.

Section 6. The fiscal year shall be run from January 1 through December 31 of each year

ARTICLE II. Meetings

Section 1. Regular meeting shall be held as required by the Constitution.

Section 2. The date, place and time of these meetings shall be kept posted by the Secretary, on the Club bulletin board.

Section 3. Special meetings as provided for in the Constitution shall be called by the Commodore on the written request of a majority of the members and he may call them at his discretion.

Section 4. Notices shall be sent to every member of all meetings at least five (5) days prior thereto. Notice of special meetings shall state the purpose for which they are called.

ARTICLE III. Order of Business

Section 1. Meetings shall be conducted in the following manner:

1) Reading of Minutes; 2) Reports of Officers; 3) Reports of Committees; 4) Unfinished business; 5) General Business

Section 2. In case of disputes as to order and debate, Roberts' Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall govern.

ARTICLE IV. Procedure for Admission of Members

Section 1. a. Anyone interested in joining OSYC shall be advised to fill out the membership application form and submit it to the club Secretary. The Secretary will forward a copy of the application to the Membership Committee for review.

b. Within 30 days of receiving a copy of the application, or as soon as possible, one or more members of the Membership Committee will meet with the applicant and review the application. The committee may vote to request or require that the applicant attend one or more club functions as a guest of the club. Upon completion of any required attendance at club functions or at the request of the applicant, the Committee will promptly make a positive or negative recommendation to the Board of Trustees.

c. Upon receiving the Committee's recommendation, the Board of Trustees, by majority vote, will promptly decide if the applicant should be recommended for membership. If the vote is positive, one or more of the Board members may sign as sponsors or the applicant may obtain sponsors from among the membership. If the vote is negative the application shall not be posted and the applicant shall be so notified by the Secretary.

d. Once the application is approved by the Board and signed by two sponsors, it will then be posted on the club bulletin board. Membership shall take effect 30 days after having been posted on club bulletin board and after all fees are paid, unless more than one member has objected in writing to the Secretary.

e. If two (2) or more voting members object in writing prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) days, the Board of Trustees must call a special executive session to hear the objections. The hearing shall be closed to all except the objectors and the board, and the topics of the meeting shall be limited to the hearing and discussion of the objections. The identity of the objectors and the content of the objections shall be kept confidential. After the hearing, the board may seek additional information from the applicant, sponsors, or other sources as needed. After consideration, the board may vote to override the objections and accept the applicant as a member with a 2/3 majority of the entire board, minus any formal abstentions. If the application fails to receive the required majority, the application is rejected. In either case, the applicant and sponsors are notified by the Secretary.

Section 2. Upon election of an applicant, the Secretary shall notify the new member and his sponsor of his election in writing and shall furnish the new member with copies of the Club's Constitution, Bylaws and all rules and regulations.

ARTICLE V. Procedures for Nominations of Officers

Section 1. The Nominating Committee shall select and present a single recommended slate of officers and board members for election at the Fall General Membership Meeting. The Committee shall present the recommended slate to the Board of Trustees sufficiently in advance of the Fall Meeting to allow a list of candidates to be mailed to the membership in advance of the meeting.

Section 2. The Nominating Committee should attempt to rotate officers and board members on a prescribed schedule as follows: A maximum of two consecutive one year terms for Commodore and Vice-Commodore, and replacement of at least one at-large Trustee each year.

Section 3. In addition the Nominating Committee shall be required to accept, verify and vet any nominations received from the membership at large, and present those nominations in addition to the recommended slate of candidates.

Section 4. The actions of the Nominating Committee notwithstanding, any club member can, if desired, directly nominate a candidate for election by notifying the club

Secretary in advance of the Fall Meeting, or by making a nomination from the floor at the Fall Meeting itself.

ARTICLE VI. Standing Rules

Section 1. The Club may adopt standing rules and regulations in order to promote the safe efficient and effective operation and control of activities related to Club membership but not otherwise covered by the Constitution or Bylaws. The standing rules may be amended by majority vote at any membership or trustee meeting.

ARTICLE VII. Amendments

Section 1. Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed at any meeting, but no amendments, if then passed, shall be valid until approved at a subsequent meeting. If an amendment is adopted at the meeting at which it is proposed, it must be kept posted until the next meeting on the bulletin board by the Secretary.

Section 2. There shall be no suspension of these Bylaws.

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE OCONEE SAILING AND YACHT CLUB, INC.

Revised October 29, 2011

The following standing rules and regulations were designed to make the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club a pleasant place for every member to spend his leisure hours. Consideration for others cannot be legislated.

GROUNDS

- 1.** Empty bottles, cans, paper, and other litter are either placed in the containers provided or removed from the Club property.
- 2.** No personal effects are to be left on or around the Club property unless space is provided and approved by the Trustees for this purpose.
- 3.** No dogs are permitted on Club premises.
- 4.** Guests are permitted on Club premises only when accompanied by a member or upon presenting evidence of membership in another recognized Yacht Club. Members of other yacht clubs shall be permitted the privilege of the Club for a maximum of two (2) weeks when approved by the Trustees.
- 5.** No member may bring more than four (4) guests to the Club at any one time without permission of a Trustee.
- 6.** No person under the age of 18 are allowed on the grounds or in the facilities of the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club unless accompanied by an adult member of the Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club.
- 7.** The Club assumes no responsibility for safety of boats or other personal property left on the Club premises.
- 8.** Parking of automobiles and boat trailers, camping and picnicking equipment, shall, be confined to the areas allotted for these purposes.
- 9.** The Grounds Committee shall have the authority to assign or reassign parking spaces in order to provide for the orderly control of traffic and the most effective use of club property.
- 10.** When parking vehicle and trailers, care must be taken to not block access to other members boats, even for a short time. If a vehicle must be left blocking boats, keys should be left in the vehicle or in the club house. Unattended vehicles left blocking access to boats may be towed at the owners expense.
- 11.** No open fires shall be made for any purpose without the permission of a Trustee. Picnic grills, that completely contain the fire, may be used on the premises by a member only if that member takes full responsibility for extinguishing the fire and for any damage that may be done to Club property as a result of its use.

12. Permission to use the club grounds and facilities by non-member groups including but not limited to the Boy Scouts, church groups, and regattas, can be granted by the trustees provided that one or more members in good standing agree to sponsor the group and the sponsoring member(s) agree(s) to the following:

- a. At least one of the sponsoring members will be at the club at all times that the outside group is on the grounds.
- b. The sponsoring member(s) is responsible for ensuring that those present follow club rules (such as no pets allowed on the grounds and use of the club barge) and that the club house and grounds are cleaned up after the group has left.
- c. The sponsoring member(s) ensures that the club is reimbursed for supplies such as paper products and gasoline used by the group. For regattas, the board will set a per boat fee for non-member owned boats to cover these expenses. For other groups, the sponsoring member may choose to replace paper and toilet products used or make a donation to the club to cover the cost of the supplies used

13. The basement storage area under the clubhouse shall not be used for storage of boats, gasoline motors, batteries, gasoline tanks, or solvents. Any such items found in the basement must be removed immediately.

Personal items stored in the basement are limited to sails and portable air conditioners. In addition members may store one plastic storage box , maximum size 2 ft by 3 ft by 20 inches tall, containing personal items other than those items banned above. In addition, all items must have the owners name clearly marked on the items.

The Building and Grounds committee may allow, with specific approval, certain personal items (such as air compressors, vacuum cleaners, and pressure washers) to be stored in the basement and or shed with the condition that they be made available for all club members to use.

14. Camping trailers must be parked in designated camper trailer places only. Because of limited space and electrical, a total of 4 campers may be plugged into the electricity at one time.

Camper trailers and tents will be charged \$5.00 per night if plugged into the electricity. There will be no charge for tents unless pitched in the areas designated for trailers.

Camper trailers and tents may stay no longer than two weeks continually and must not be left unattended on the grounds overnight. The Building and Grounds Committee will set procedures for making reservations for use of designated trailer campsites.

15. Tents may be pitched anywhere on the point (past the swimming area). During special events tents may be pitched in other areas.

16. The electrical receptacles may not be altered in any way to bypass the ground fault circuit or fit a different type of plug, no exceptions. An adaptor may be used to match a trailer plug to the provided receptacle. Available power is limited due to wire size.

DOCKS

1. The Club maintains docks for boating and a float for swimming.

2. The outer Section of the boating docks is reserved solely for embarking and disembarking passengers and for landing. Under no circumstances shall boats be tied up to this Section of the dock any longer than necessary.
3. Sailboats left unattended at docks shall have sails lowered.
4. All boats should have fenders out on both sides while tied up at the dock.
5. There shall be no fishing from any dock during period of boating activity and no swimming from the boating docks at any time. No children under eight (8) years of age are permitted on the docks unless attended by an adult.
6. All docks, platforms, moorings or haul-out apparatus shall be built, located, regulated and anchored only as authorized by the Trustees. The Trustees shall have the authority to relocate or remove any permanent or temporary dock, platform, mooring or haul-out apparatus.

BERTHING OF BOATS

1. Locations for the berthing of all craft ashore shall be assigned by the Grounds Committee which has the right to change assigned locations as necessary.
2. Locations for the berthing of all craft afloat shall be assigned by the Docks Committee subject to the approval of the Trustees.
3. The mooring area (dock slips), has been laid out for the most efficient use of space and the greatest safety of the boats. It is absolutely essential, therefore, that the assignment of all wet slip locations be approved by the Trustees. Assignment of wet slips shall be limited to boats weighing less than 5000 lbs and under 26 feet in length, except by special arrangement.
4. Wet slip assignments are intended for actively sailed sail boats that are not easily trailered
5. Each member shall provide his own mooring gear and shall pay any specified charges for wet slip storage.
6. Because an improperly docked boat is a hazard to all other boats in the mooring area, it is the duty of the Docks Committee to establish certain requirements and limitations relating to mooring gear for all boats. These requirements must be ascertained from that committee and complied with before berthing boats overnight. All moorings are subject to inspection by the Docks Committee that has the authority to remove any improperly docked boat from the dock area until the docking requirements are met. In every case the committee shall be the sole judge of the adequacy or acceptability of a mooring or a docked boat.
7. Boat storage on club grounds is primarily intended for mast-up storage of actively dry-sailed sailboats.
8. The Grounds Committee will endeavor to arrange for one parking space per member, with parking for additional sailboats and empty sailboat trailers available on a strictly "space-available" basis. Pontoon boats and other motor boats may not be stored on club grounds. (Exceptions are granted for motor boats stored before October 28, 2011.)
9. The fee for non-member storage of boats on club grounds shall be \$100 per month.
10. Parking shall be restricted as follows:

- a) The area between the ramp and the club house is reserved for day-use and short-term temporary use only.
 - b) The parking area between the hoist and the front gate is reserved exclusively for actively dry-sailed, mast-up sail boats.
 - c) No boats or trailers shall be parked in the swimming beach area between the sunfish racks and the swing sets.
 - d) All motorboats must be parked in the areas beyond the swimming beach.
 - e) Empty sailboat trailers must be parked in areas not suitable for mast up boat storage due to tree clearance or slope.
- 11 .Boats berthed on trailers must be secured in accordance with the standards set by the Grounds Committee. This committee shall be the sole judge of the adequacy or acceptability of trailers or other haul-out gear.
12. Boat owners are to provide adequate rain covers for their boats, as the Club cannot assume responsibility for keeping boats bailed out.
13. All member, whether their boats are berthed ashore or at a dock slip, are obliged to attend to the safety of their craft during periods of rising waters and other emergencies. Under no circumstances does the Club assume responsibility for the loss or damage to any boat.
14. Private house rafts may not be anchored in the Club cove.
15. Any moorings in the vicinity of the Club docks or water spaces for a time duration longer than one week must be approved by the Trustees.
16. Unattended boats shall not be left plugged in to electrical power either on-shore or in water.

CLUB BOATS

1. The club boats are to be used only for scheduled club events or as otherwise approved by the trustees except in an emergency situation such as when another boat is in distress and needs assistance.

SAFETY

1. Children under age 10 must wear life jackets when aboard a boat or on any club dock
2. Everyone, regardless of age, who is not a proficient swimmer, should wear a life jacket when aboard a boat or on any club dock. Children under age 18, who are not proficient swimmers, must wear a life jacket when on any club dock.
3. All minor children must be supervised by a parent or guardian while on club grounds.
4. Swimming is prohibited from any boat dock at any time.
5. Landing or mooring a boat is strictly prohibited at the swimming dock at any time.
6. No boat shall be operated inside the swimming area, except for life boats.
7. Five miles per hour is the maximum speed permitted for power boats inside the club cove and in waters near the Club property.
8. Water skiing is not permitted inside the Club cove nor to or from any Club dock.

- 9.** The Oconee Sailing and Yacht Club requires the following:
- (a)** That every boat shall be provided with adequate personal floatation devices (life preservers) for each occupant.
 - (b)** That firearms and explosive devices shall not be brought onto the lake or Club premises.
 - (c)** That no bottles, cans, rubbish, garbage, or other refuse of any kind shall be thrown on Club grounds or otherwise placed in the lake.
- 10.** Children must not be left unattended at the swimming area even if a lifeguard is on duty or other parents are present.